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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.:

JOHN H. RAMIREZ,
Plaintiff,
\2
CITY OF FT. LAUDERDALE FIRE RESCUE,

Defendant.
/

DEFENDANT’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL

Defendant, CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE (“Defendant” or “City of Fort Lauderdale™),’
by and through its undersigned counsel, Law Offices of Carmen Rodriguez, P.A., and pursuant to
28 U.S.C. §1446(a), files this Notice of Removal from the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth Judicial
Circuit, in and for Broward County, ‘Florida, to this Court, a proceeding styled JohAn H. Ramirez v.
City of Ft. Lauderdale Fire Rescue, Case No. 19-000207-CA-02, and in support thereof, states as
follows:

1. On January 4, 2019, this action was filed in the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth
Judicial Circuit, in and for Broward County, Florida, Case No. 19-000207-CA-02. On January 11,
Defendant was served by process with a copy of the Plaintiff, JOHN H. RAMIREZ’s, Verified

Complaint. Copies of all pleadings and filings in the state court action are attached hereto as Exhibit

'Plaintiff misidentified Defendant as “City of Ft. Lauderdale Fire Rescue” in his initial
Complaint filed in Circuit Court. The correct municipal corporation in this matter is City of Fort
Lauderdale. Fire Rescue is a department within the City of Fort Lauderdale.

1
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A, and are incorporated by reference pursuant to Rule 10(c), Fed. R. Civ. P. No other pleadings,
orders or process have been filed in the state court action.

2. In his Verified Complaint, Plaintiff alleges an action against his employer, City of
Fort Lauderdale, for violation of the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights
Act (“USERRA”), 38 U.S.C. §§4301, et seq.

3. Title 38 U.S.C. §4323(b)(3) provides that district courts of the United States shall
have jurisdiction of an action brought under USERRA, 38 U.S.C. §§4301, et seq., against a “private
employer” by a person.

4. Title 38 U.S.C. §4323(i) states that the term “private employer” includes a political
subdivision of a State.

5. In Harris v. City of Mongomery, the plaintiff asserted a USERRA claim against his
employer, the City of Montgomery. 322 F.Supp.2d 1319 (M.D. Ala. 2004). In rejecting the
employér’s position that the district court did not have jurisdiction, the district court explained that
“[a] suit against a municipality is not the same as a suit against the State; a suit against a municipality
is considered a suit against a private employer, 38 U.S.C. §4323(j)*(“In this section, the term “private
employer’ includes a political subdivision of a State™)...” Id. at1326. It held that because the City of
Montgomery is a municipality, the district court had jurisdiction under 38 U.S.C. §4323(b)(3).

6. In this case, Plaintiff’s Verified Complaint alleges violation of USERRA, 38 U.S.C.
§§4301, et seq., against his employer, City of Fort Lauderdale. Like the employer in Harris, the City

of Fort Lauderdale is a municipality. See Fort Lauderdale, Florida, Code of Ordinances, Art. I, §1.01;

*Prior to 2008 amendment, 110 Pub. L. No. 389, which redesignated subsection (j) as
subsection (i).
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Fla. Const. Art. VIII, §2. Therefore, this Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 38 U.S.C. §4323(b)(3)
and (1).

7. Accordingly, Defendant is entitled to remove this action from the Circuit Court ofthe
Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Broward County, Florida, to the United States District Court.
See 28 U.S.C. §1441. Circuit Court Notice of Filing Removal is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

8. Venue is proper in the Southern District of Florida, in that the Circuit Court action
is pending within the jurisdictional confines of this District and Division. See 28 U.S.C. §1446(a).

9. In accordance with 28 U.S.C. §1446(b), wherein a removal action must be filed
within thirty (30) days after Defendant’s receipt of service, the removal period of this action has not
yet expired.

WHEREFORE, Defendant requests that further proceedings in the Circuit Court of the
Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Broward County, Florida in Case No. 19-000207-CA-02 be
discontinued and that the action be removed to the United States District Court for the Southern
District of Florida.

Dated: January 18, 2019
Miami, Florida Respectfully submitted,

s/Carmen Rodriguez

Carmen Rodriguez - Florida Bar No. 710385
Attorney E-mail address: crpa@crlaborlawfirm.com
Law Offices of Carmen Rodriguez, P.A.

Palmetto Bay Centre

15715 South Dixie Highway, Suite 411

Miami, Florida 33157

Telephone: (305) 254-6101

Facsimile: (305) 254-6048

Attorneys for Defendant
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was served by email on January

18, 2019 on all counsel or parties of record on the Service List below.

s/Carmen Rodriguez

Carmen Rodriguez
SERVICE LIST

Randy A. Fleischer, P.A. Carmen Rodriguez, Esquire
Florida Bar No. 910546 Florida Bar No. 710385
E-mail address: randy@rafesq.com E-mail address: crpa@crlaborlawfirm.com
Law Offices of Randy A. Fleischer, P.A. Law Offices of Carmen Rodriguez, P.A.
8258 State Road 84 15715 S. Dixie Highway
Davie, Florida 33324 Suite 411
Telephone: (954) 472-8401 Miami, Florida 33157-1884
Facsimile: (954) 472-8446 Telephone: (305) 254-6101
Attorneys for Plaintiff Facsimile: (305) 254-6048

Attorneys for Defendant
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EXHIBIT A
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Filing # 82843611 E-Filed 01/04/2019 09:51:22 AM '

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE

17th JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND

FOR BROWARD COUNTY FLORIDA
JOHN H. RAMIREZ,

Plaintiff, Case No.
V.
CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE FIRE RESCUE

Defendant.
/

VERIFIED COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND
Plaintiff sues Defendant and states:
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This action seeks equitable and injunctive relief, compensatory damages in excess of
$15,000, lost benefits and promotion, liquidated damages and attorney's fees and costs for
violation of the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act
(USERRA 38 U.S.C. 4301-4333).

2. Pursuant to 38 U.S.C. 4323(b)(2) jurisdiction for a case of a person against the State as an
employer is in any state court of competent jurisdiction. NO COURT COSTS MAY BE
CHARGED OR TAXED PURSUANT TO 38 USC 4323(c)(h).

PARTIES

3. JOHN H. RAMIREZ, (hereinafter Plaintiff) is a citizen and resident of the United States
who at all times relevant served and continues to serve in the United States Army.

4, CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE FIRE RESCUE, (hereinafter Defendant) is a Florida

governmental agency doing business in Broward County, Florida and employs more than
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fifteen (15) regular employees.
FACTS

5. Plaintiff was hired by Defendant in March 1994,

6. During Plaintiff’s employment by Defendant he was called for various deployments with
the U.S. Army.

7. In 2004 Plaintiff was employed by Defendant as Battalion Chief.

8. In 2004 Plaintiff first applied for promotion to Division Chief. The Information Bulleting
No. 04-168 from the Fort Lauderdale Fire Department came out with the results of the
Division Chief Ranks on 19 November 2004.

9. Plaintiff has repeatedly applied for promotion to Division Chief.

10. The second time the Plaintiff took a Division test was on 2007 and the information bulleting
No. 07-169 came out with the results on 25 September 2007.

11. The third time the Plaintiff took the test was on 2012 and the informational bulleting No.
12-131 came out with the results on 7 November 2012.

12. The fourth time was on 2016, the City of Fort Lauderdale gave a test and came out with
the result before the plaintiff was able to take the test due that he was on military orders
and applied to for the test, Information bulleting No. 15-081 came out with the results on
22 Jun 2015.

13. The Plaintiff was given the opportunity to take the Division test and new revised
information bulletin No. 16-069 came out on 29 April 2016,

14. Plaintiff has never been granted promotion to Division Chief.
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15. Plaintiff complained to Ms. Cosentino that he had been denied promotions and that it was
connected to his military service (Exhibit A).

16. The Defendant never responded to Plaintiff’s complaint.

17. The Defendant uses the rule of five to select the personnel for promotion and had been
violating the rights of the Plaintiff by not following the State of Florida Veterans
preference. 1

18. Plaintiff has been the better qualified for promotion than at least one person promoted
ahead of him.

19. Plaintiff has complained to the Defendant that his military service was a factor in the
decision to deny him promotion.

20. Plaintiff has complainéd to the Department of Veterans Affair that he has been denied
promotion because of his military service.

- 21. Defendant has not responded to the Department of Veteran’s Affairs investigation. (Ex. B).

22. Defendant has refused to promote Plaintiff because of his military service.

23. Plaintiff’s military service is continuing as he currently serves as a Major and Project

Officer in the Commander’s Action Group, U.S. Southern Command.

1. VETERANS' PREFERENCE Section 295.07 et seq., Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapter
55A-7, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) Typically the decision maker may choose
whomever he/she wants. This is referred to as the "Rule of 5" (or whatever the size of the
group). If there is a Veterans' Preference eligible applicant in the group, the decision maker
MUST select the Veterans' Preference eligible candidate. The decision maker is not able
to skip over a VP candidate and select an equally qualified Non- VP candidate. If there is
more than one VP candidate in the group, the selection will be based upon how the
candidates qualified for VP and their placement in the eligibility category. A qualifying
disabled veteran will always be selected over any other category of applicants.
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24, Plaintiff has suffered damages as a result of Defendant\s refusal to prarote Plaintiff since
2004.
25, Plaintiff has been compelled to hire an attorney and file suit as Defendant refused to make
Plaintiff whole. -
26. Plaintiff demands a jury trial
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
27. WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFF prays that this Court:
a. Declare the conduct of the Defendant in violation of his rights;
b. Award him injunctive relief by ordering the Defendant to promote Plaintiff to Division
Chief as of November 19, 2004 when the position for Division Chief was available;
¢. Award him back pay from November 2004 through the trial;
d. Award him full seniority as Division Chief from November 2004 as if he had never been
on military service;
e. Award him liquidated damages;
f.  Award him costs and attorney's fees pursuant to 38 USC 4323(h)}(2);

g. Grant such other relief as the Court deems just and necessary.
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YERIFICATION
1, JOHN H. RAMIREZ do hereby verily hat all of the factual allegations related to me and made

in the above Verified Complaint und Jury Demand are true to the best of my belief and recollection.

JOHN H, RAMIREZ
Plaintiff

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROWARD

st’l?()lllii ME, the undersigned authority, duly licensed to administer oaths and lake
acknowledgments, personally appeared JOHN H. RAMIREZ, who, being by me first duly sworn
and persanally Known 10 me, deposes and says that he bos read the foregoing Verdiied Complaint
and Jury Demand, and that the factual allegations relating o him are true and correct to the best of
his knowledge, information and helief,

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this J_QWW daty of Octeber, 2018,

prt TR
s%?’ulat oty ot Florldd

G . Commision # i3 Qsﬁsn
3525 1y Come. Exglees
FIDE.  gonted e K60

My mmmwsum gm;m kit

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY A. FLEISCHER, P.A.
8258 State Rd 84
Davie Florida 33324

954) 472-8401

954) 472-8446 FAX
randy@rafesq.com E-mail

s/R. Fleischer
Randy A. Fleischer, Esq.

Florida Bar No. 910546
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From:John Ramirez <jRamirez®fortlauderdale govi
Date: February 11, 2016 at 23:18:40 EST

To: "jhramirez@comcast.net” Ghramirez@comcast.net»
Subject: Veterans Issue

RHello Ms. Cosentine,

| spoke with you a couple of weeks ago in reference of my situation with the Fort Lauderdale Fire Rascue
Department, in reference that | had been skippad numerous times for the promation of Division Chief
even though that | have Veterans Preference.

I have been working for the Fire Departmaent for almost 22 years and with the US ARMY Reserve almost
26 years. At this time | hold the rank of Battalion Chief with the Fire Department and a Mzjor with the
US ARMEY Reserve.

| arn & veteran of the Persian Gulf War and the Operation Enduring Freedom; a resident of the state of
Florida for 30 years and | have been Honorably discharge from my deploynients.

My complaint i that | befieve that my rights as US Veteran has been violated due that | had been
ckipped for the promotion of the Division Chief for personnel that are not Vaterans. The Fire
Department use the rule of five to promote the personnet but according with Florida Department of
Vetaran's Affairs | MUST be promoted even though that they use the rule of Five.

The following is the back ground of the situation:

t tock my first promotional test for Division Chief on 2004, the Information Bulleting form the Fire
Department came out with the results on 19 November 2014 {Attached Information Bulieting No. 04-
168). The following were the results:

Rank 1 Battalion Chief Christopher Weir the was promoted, no a veteran)

Rank 2 Batialion Chief Lois Bowman (she was promoted, no a veteran)} and Batialion Chief Richard
Brown

Rank 3 Battalion Chief John Malenda and Battalion Chief William Findtan

Rank 4 Battalion Chief John Ramirez {I was not prometed fram this fist)

Rank 5 Battalion Chief Robert Hoecher!

Rank & Battalion Chief Willlam Banks

Rank 7 Battalion Chief Robert Simac

The second time § ook the Division Chief Test was on 2007, the information Bulleting form the Fire
Department cama out with the results on 25 September 2007 (Attached tnformation Bulleting No.07-
169, alsa information Bulletin with the Fire-rescue Promotions No.09-059), The following were the
results:

Rank 1 were Battzlien Chief Eric Pologruto {he was promoted, no a veteran) and Battalion Chief John

Molenda the was promoted, o a veteran)
Rank 2 ware Battalion Chief Robert Bacic (he was promoted, no & veteran} and Battalion Chief Robert
Hoecherl (he was pramoted, no & veteran}

EXHIBIT A
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Rank 3 Battalions Chief John Ramirez (| was skipped for the promotion for Battalion Chief William

Findlan}
Rank 4 Battalien Chief William Findlan {he was promoted, no a veteran} and Battalion Chief Richard

Brown]

Rank 5 Battalion Chief William Banks
Rank 6 Battalion Chief Timothy Blank
Rank 7 Battalion Chief Edward Duncan

The third time | took the Division Chief Test was on 2012, the Information Bulieting form the Fire
Department came out with the resuits on 7 November 2012 {Attached Information Bulleting 12-131}.
Tha following weare the results:

Rank 1 were Battalion Chief Timothy Heiser (he was promoted, no a veteran) and Sattalion Chizf John -
San Angelo (he was promotad and he is a veteran)

Rank 2 Battalion Chief fohn Ramirez (| was skipped for Battalion Chief Chantal Botting, no a veteran}
Rank 3 Battalion Chief Chantat Botting {she was promotsed, no a veteran}

Rank 4 Battalion Chief Stewart Ahearn}

Rank 5 Battalion Chief Timothy Blank and Battallon Chief David Carter

Rank 6 Battalion Chief Richard Brown and Battalion Chief Stanley Douglas

Rank 7 Battalion Chief William Banks

Rank 8 Batialion Chief Jeffrey Lucas

Rank 9 Battalion Chief Kenneth Rudominer

| was deptoyed in suppart of Qperation Enduring Freedom from 4 November 20103 to 24 October 2015,
On the beginning of the year 2015 | was informed that the Fire Department wants to give another
Division Test. 1 informed the Fire Department that | was deployed and | was not able to take the Division
Test. | submitted the application via the internet to apply for the pasition.

1 attached the e-mails for the communization | has with the Human Rescurces department.

On 08 May 2015 | was advised by Ms. Andrea Watters that they test will be on 17 Jun and 19 Jun 2015
and she advised that [ can take the test after my discharge from adive duty. | advised Ms. Walters on 4
Jun 15 that | was not able to attend these dates and that | will {ake the test after my discharge from
active duty.

| sent an e-mail advising Ms. Walters an 24 November 2015 of my returns to the Fire Department and
requested a date for the Division Chief test.

Ms. Walters advised me on 31 Dec 2015 that the test will be schedufe on 14 Jan or 15 january 2016; due
that f did not have another e-mail from s, Walters advising the time or location t sant an-email on 12
Jan 16 requasting the information, she replied the same day stating that the dates were no fonger being
considered and they will contact me with some afternatives.

I received an e-mail form Ms. Walters on 01 Feb 2015 stating to save 9 Feb 2016 for the test; on 2 Feb
20161 replied and requasted the time and location for the test.

On 8 Feb 2015 | received an e-maif form Ms. Walters advising that the test needs to be reschaduted
agaln. On same day | advised Ms. Walters that my annual training with the US Army will be from 20 Feb
to 4 Mar 2016.
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In addition, the Fire Depariment did the test and came out with a list already date 22 Jun 2015 (attached
Information Bulletin do.15-081} with the following resutts without waiting for me to take the test:

Rank 1 BC Douglas Stanley (he was promoted effective 21 Jun 2015, no a veteran)

Rank 2 BC Stewart Ahearn {he was promoted effective 2 August 2015, no & veteran) and BC Melanie
Snowhite

Rank 3 BC 10-Ann Lorber

Rank 4 BC Timathy Blank

Rank 5 BCJohn Mcloughlin

Rank 6 BC David Carter and BC Walter Diatz

Ms. Consentino, | believe my rights as veteran has been violated since 2004 and they rontinue doing it.

Please et me know if vou need more information to be able to start an investigation; the following is my
contact information:

John H. Ramirez

Address: 19042 NW 79 CT Miami-Lakes, FL 33015
Cell: 786~295-5264

Personal E-mail: jhramirez@comcast.net

ARMY e-maik: johin.h.ramirez. mil@mail i

Fire Depariment e-mail: jramirez@fortlauderdale gov

| really appreciate the attention to this ratter, your assistance and support.

VR

Fohn H Rpmiven, JBE, EFQ

ity of Fort Londerdife Five- Bescns
Rattalion Clief Opomtions

AR Diisivies 13

Colf (7461 2955264

pamires@fortlondndal, gor

“The final test of & leader is that fiz leaves bekind fim
in o#fir men $fe conviction and the witl to carry o
~Walta Lyppimans-
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Stare of Florida

ek Seon

PDEPARTMENT OF VETERANS® AFFAIRS et
Office of the Executive Dircctor pch Band!
The Capited, Suite 2105, 400 Sauth Monroe Street Hony Patvonis
Tulfshassee, FL 32399.0001 Chiet Figana it Giiva
Phone: TAA)) 4871535 Fav (8507 4584001 - Adans Putaem
Menat W, Sutplia dr, waw FloridaVers, oy £ immsintsezener of Agasaiery

Eacewn ¢ Mircutur

January 19, 2018

f4aj. Jolin Ramirez
9301 NW 33" Sireat
Dorsl, FL 33172

RE: VP 16-0036

Dear Maj. Ramyez:

Thark you for your Veterans' Preferencs inguity. The Florida Depariment of Veterans® Affairs (FOVA)
apprecistes the opportunity to serve you. This letier 8 In response o your ernployment complaird
filed With the (FDVA) pursuant 1o Section S5A-7,018, Florida Admivigimative Code (FAC).

The FOVA has nof recsived any rasponse from the Gity of Fort Lauderdate (CFL) despite numiarous
requests beginning April 26, 2016, to the most recent sent Janiuary 3. 2018, Certifiod Relarn Racaipl,
which was signed as accepted by CFL on January 8. 2018 A oopy of this nofification has alsa bean
providad to CFL.

The investigative findings confirmed fhat you are o profarnce-eligitie veteran who timely and
propesty complalad ant application for a pranotionat opportunity that reguires the spplication of
Velarans' Preference with CFL. You mal the minimum qualifications, howover, due to CFL's
continued tadk of response 10 FOVA's equest for idonmation i is mnpossidle to determing i Velerans'
Preforence was applisd. Tharefore, FDVA has detesmined that you have rade & valid comiplain{ for
gass 168035,

Ttw meoployer is regquirsd by subseclion 584-7.0106(7% FAC, 1o provida 1o yoo withia 30 days of
recwipt of the nvestigative indings & proposed plan W resolve the complainl. If the employer is unabia
or unwiling o resolve your complaing, you have the nght fo appeal 1a the Public Employees Retations
Commission (PERC). Yiou must notify the FOVA in writing within 185 calendar days from receipt of
the employer's proposad action that you are nat satisfied with the rasolulion for the camplaint. i the
employar has not furmished you with a proposed resoiution for your conyaint within 30 days of
recoipt of the investigative findings, you must notify the FOVA within 15 calendar days of the dusg
date of the propased resolution of the et that it employar has not atteniptad a resolution.

if PERC delermines that il has jurisdiction of your cise, it will ordar a hearing officer o conducl 8
forsal heasring under the provisions of Flotida Administrative Pronediges Act, Chapter 120, Flonds
Stotules {20081 A this heanng, bolh you, or your altarney, snd U aployer will ba atiowed o
present sworn withessng, cross-examing withegses, and produce wiilten gvidence an the question
of wiaiier 02 0ok YOU A tho more guakfied person oF the job

“Hopscrisy shese wier seevall L2807

Exhibit B
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i you have guestions about the authority of jurisdiction of the PERC. you may call or wite to the
Commissiort. The addrass is:

Public Employees Rafations Commission
4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 180
Tallshasses, £l 32398-0950

(850} 488-8641

David Marzisfio

Inspector General

Florida Department of Veteran Affaits
MarndloD@idva state lLus

{7271 518-3202 ext, 5570

co: Averilt Dorsell, Director Human Resources
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 17TH
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR
BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

CASE NO.: 19-000207-CA-02

JOHN H. RAMIREZ,
Plaintiff,
V.
CITY OF FT. LAUDERDALE FIRE RESCUE,

Defendant.
/

CIRCUIT COURT NOTICE OF FILING REMOVAL

TO: Brenda D. Forman

Clerk of Courts

Seventeenth Judicial Circuit for Broward County

201 S.E. 6th Street

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301

Defendant, CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE,' by and through its counsel, Law Offices of
Carmen Rodriguez, P.A., and pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1446(d), file herewith a copy of Defendant’s
Notice of Removal of this matter from the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, in and

for Broward County, Florida, to the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida.

Dated: January 18, 2019

'Plaintiff misidentified Defendant as “City of Ft. Lauderdale Fire Rescue” in his initial
Complaint filed with the Court. The correct municipal corporation in this matter is City of Fort
Lauderdale. Fire Rescue is a department within the City of Fort Lauderdale.

1
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Respectfully submitted,

s/ Carmen Rodriguez

Carmen Rodriguez, Esq. (FBN 710385)
Email: crpa@crlaborlawfirm.com
Law Offices of Carmen Rodriguez, P.A.
15715 S. Dixie Highway, Suite 411
Miami, Florida 33157-1884

Telephone: (305) 254-6101

Facsimile: (305) 254-6048

Attorneys for Defendant

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was served via an
automatic email generated by the Florida Courts E-Filing Portal on all counsel or parties of record

on the Service List below, on this 18th day of January, 2019.

s/Carmen Rodriguez

Carmen Rodriguez
SERVICE LIST
Randy A. Fleischer, P.A. : Carmen Rodriguez, Esquire
Florida Bar No. 910546 Florida Bar No. 710385
E-mail address: randy@rafesq.com E-mail address: crpa@crlaborlawfirm.com
Law Offices of Randy A. Fleischer, P.A. Law Offices of Carmen Rodriguez, P.A.
8258 State Road 84 15715 S. Dixie Highway
Davie, Florida 33324 Suite 411
Telephone: (954) 472-8401 Miami, Florida 33157-1884
Facsimile: (954) 472-8446 Telephone: (305) 254-6101
Attorneys for Plaintiff Facsimile: (305) 254-6048
Attorneys for Defendant
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